
Question 

Number Question Answer

1

Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this? (From 

India or Canada)

The State of New Hampshire does not discourage foreign or out of state 

companies from submitting a proposal. All bidders should note and be 

aware that there are required steps  to register a foreign, in-state or out-of-

state company as an approved state vendor. These steps would need to 

occur before the awarding of the contract via Governor and Executive 

Council. For more information to become a state vendor, please refer to the 

NH Administrative Services website: 

https://das.nh.gov/purchasing/vendor.asp 

2 Whether we need to come over there for meetings?

Yes, there will be a requirement for  in-person meetings. In person meetings 

are preffered. 

3

Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? (From 

India or Canada) Please refer to question 1.

4 Can we submit our proposals via email 

Yes, as noted in the RFP, proposals can be submitted via email to 

Nathaniel.Nelson@dred.nh.gov  by 3pm on December 2, 2016.

5

The scope of work includes “Build additional web pages, landing 

pages and campaign assets as

necessary.” Are these anticipated to be based on existing site 

templates and assets or newly

created based on custom requirements? As that is an open-ended 

requirement, is NHADEC

open to upfront estimates and hourly billing for such 

customizations with the understanding

that custom work may result in annual costs exceeding the stated 

$6,500 maximum?

These new web pages, landing pages and campaign assets will be based on 

existing site templates that will be linked to the newly developed NHADEC 

website found at www.nhadec.com.  The newly designed website makes use 

of Wordpress CMS. Campaign assets that need to be developed will be built 

in collaboration with the NHADEC Marketing Committee and will only be 

developed with a proper understanding of the total estimated cost, 

remaining budget, and overall marketing priorities.

The maximum budget is based on funding approved by and received from 

the Office of Economic Adjustment grant; thus, there will not be an ability to 

exceed this amount while under contract.  All projects will require estimates 

so that workload priorities can be made.  Additional services may be paid for 

by the NHADEC via its own funding but would require prior approval from 

the NHADEC Board of Directors.

Submitted Questions



6

Is the website to be maintained and expanded currently at 

www.nhadec.com ? As this RFP

specifically cites WordPress as the CMS for the NHADEC site but 

the site currently visible on

www.nhadec.com is built with the Joomla CMS, can you clarify the 

current technology stack or

provide clarity on what website is to be maintained?

The website to be maintained and expanded upon will be the newly 

designed NHADEC website which went live on November 17, 2016, and can 

be found at www.nhadec.com.

The old NHADEC site was built with Joomla CMS but was transitioned to the 

new site on November 17, 2016.  The newly designed website was built with 

WordPress.

7

What server provider currently hosts the code and assets for the 

current site?

The newly designed website, which can be found at www.nhadec.com, will 

be hosted by the current website developer and its partners.  As such, 

hosting of the website will not be based on the results of this RFP.

8

Is NHADEC open to hosting the website with a new 3rd party 

provider based on the results of

this RFP (assuming all necessary security, capability and technology 

needs are accounted for)?

NHADEC has made arrangements to have the newly designed website 

hosted by the current website developer.  As such, hosting of the website 

will not be based on the results of this RFP.

9

Regarding section (2.1), “website is built using WordPress”, is the 

website available for examination to determine its size, current 

state and quality? The URL address has not been stated in the RFP.  

http://www.nhadec.com has been found, however this is a Joomla 

site, not WordPress.

This RFP is for maintenance of the newly designed NHADEC website that 

went live on November 17, 2016.  This new website can be found at 

www.NHADEC.com and will replace the old website, which was built using 

the Joomla CMS.

10

Is the website to be re-designed and re-built as part of the 

proposal?

No, the website has already been re-designed and re-built.  This RFP is solely 

for the maintenance and management of this newly designed website which 

can be found at www.nhadec.com.

11

Regarding section (2.1), are all plugins, their licensing and renewals 

fully paid for by other than the Contractor?

The plugins listed in section 2.1 of the RFP have already been paid for and 

incorporated into the newly designed website found at www.NHADEC.com.  

All new plugins, licenses or renewals will be paid for out of the budget 

indicated in this RFP.  There is no anticipation, however, that any new 

plugins, licenses, or renewals will be expected.  In the event that such items 

are necessary, the contractor will work with the website review committee 

to determine the priority of these items relative to other work items under 

this RFP.



12

Is the website currently hosted and to be hosted independently 

under separate contract and not to be included in this RFP, or is 

hosting to be included in the proposal? Please refer to question 8.

13

If the website is not hosted by the Contractor, and if a security 

issue arises, can the website hosting be moved to a more secure 

supplier? Yes. There is a process in place.

14

If security issues arise, where the website is hosted by other than 

the Contractor, will the DRED or its representative pay for plugins, 

hosting, and servers of increased security?

The budget for this project and all associated tasks is based on funding 

approved by and received from the Office of Economic Adjustment grant; 

thus, there will not be an ability to exceed this amount while under contract.  

All additional items that come up  will need to have their priority considered 

compared to other project-related tasks.  Additional services may be paid 

for by the NHADEC via its own funding but would require prior approval 

from the NHADEC Board of Directors.

15

Regarding section (3), “web pages, landing pages, and campaign 

assets”, what is the current quantity of each, and how many new of 

each will be added during the twelve months of performance?

There is no current plan to add a specific amount of new web pages, landing 

pages, and/or campaign assets.  Such additions will be ad hoc in nature as 

new programs and plans are pursued.  

16

Is the Selection Committee committed to WordPress and a hosting 

supplier, or can an alternative CMS and SaaS cloud solution be 

provided that may have greater reliability and maintainability with 

easier management? 

The Selection Committee is committed to WordPress and a current hosting 

supplier.

17 Can the proposal provide options and corresponding fees?

No, the newly designed website was built utilizing the WordPress CMS.  

Additionally, hosting arrangements have already been made.

18

Regarding section (7.8), it appears that this is a liability that could 

exceed the contract value. Will the Selection Committee consider a 

proposal that strikes this section and reduces the failure to 

perform fee to $0.00? 

No.  The "failure to perform" fee is based on State of New Hampshire 

regulations.



19

If not, then what are the maximum number of business days 

allowed to perform each “production, revision, or delivery”? 

There is not a set maximum number of business days allowed to perform 

each "production, revision, or delivery" as various tasks will necessitate 

various timeframes.  The essence of section 7.8 is that the Contractor is 

responsible for establishing and meeting agreed upon delivery dates.  We 

understand that the contractor has various production commitments so 

NHADEC does not require an immediate turnaround.  NHADEC would 

request that the contractor keep the website committee up to date with 

estimated timelines and status of project deliverables.

20

How many productions, revisions, or deliveries are required each 

month? 

For purposes of the scope of work under this RFP, there is no established 

amount of productions, revisions, and/or deliveries per month.  The majority 

of the work involves ensuring that the newly designed website remains 

online and functioning securely.  Depending on the needs of NHADEC and 

the remaining budget for the contract, various ad hoc projects may come up.

21

How many lines of code and pages are in a “production, revision, 

or delivery”? This depends on the task at hand.

22 Is an email considered notification “in writing”? Yes.

23

Will the Selection Committee accept a maximum limitation of the 

failure to perform fee, of the amount of the contractor’s invoice? 

No.  The "failure to perform" fee is based on State of New Hampshire 

regulations.

24

Can the Offeror add comments to Attachment (A), Contractor Data 

Sheet, to provide a more accurate response? Yes. Please feel free to include information you feel is relevant.

25

Regarding Attachment (A), Contractor Data Sheet, section (2), will 

the Selection Committee accept for all three accounts that which 

are not “related to a sector cluster/consortium or association”?

As indicated in the instructions, the Selection Committee requests at least 

two references related to a sector clusters/consortium or association.  

However, the Selection Committee will not turn down an application simply 

because references are not related to the aforementioned categories.

26 What are the terms of payment? 

The State of New Hampshire processes payment as soon as invoices are 

received.  However, due to internal processes, in can take approximately 30 

business days for payment to be sent and received.

27 Is a monthly credit card charge acceptable? 

The State of New Hampshire requires monthly invoices that covers all work 

completed during the invoice period.



28

If not, when are checks issued upon postmark or emailing of a 

monthly invoice? 

The State of New Hampshire processes payment as soon as invoices are 

received.  However, due to internal processes, in can take approximately 30 

business days for payment to be sent and received.

29

Will finance charges for payments extending beyond 30 days be 

acceptable? The State of New Hampshire does not pay finance charges.


